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SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA
MONDAY, APRIL 29, 2002, 10:00 A.M.
-—-—-00o0——--

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: Back on the record.

Begin with the California Farm Bureau, the last of our
case in chiefs, Phase 1I.

—-—-000—---
DIRECT EVIDENCE OF CALIFORNIA FARM BUREAU FEDERATION

MR. RODEGERDTS: Mr. Chairman, members of staff, my
name is Henry Rodegerdts. I'm an attorney with the
California Farm Bureau Federation. I have submitted written
testimony, not yet participated in the cross-examination,
probably will during Phase II.

Farm Bureau's concerns are the third-party impacts that
might arise out of the contemplated transfer. We are
suggesting that there may, in fact, be impacts even if the
fallowing proposal doesn't go forward, and admittedly that
is not actually on the table at this point in time,
although it is an alternative and certainly has been alluded
to by the earlier testimony that we have heard in Phase I.

We think that it ought to be brought out on the table
and discussed. This is clearly the most far reaching water
transfer that has yet occurred in California history. But
there is every reason to believe that it is the first of a

number to follow. There are many of the opinion that this
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is the wave of the future. Oftentimes, these third-party
impacts, which we can argue are always present in any kind
of a transfer, are not properly addressed in the
environmental review because of some of the restraints in
the CEQA legislation and the interpretation that will flow
from it.

I am not going to summarize my testimony,
Mr. Chairman. It is part of the record. I am prepared to
submit it. I am prepared to offer myself for
cross-examining if that be the desire of anyone at this
time.

CHATIRMAN BAGGETT: Thank you.

Are we going to do cross-examination of each party
separately or have all three? Any preference?

MR. GILBERT: I prefer to do it separately.

MR. RODEGERDTS: It is true you have three cases in
chief here, but everyone appreciates, I think, the close

alignment between Mr. Du Bois and Mr. Larry Gilbert's case

in chief and that of the California Farm Bureau Federation.

In fact, Mr. Du Bois intends to summarize his
testimony, and I will elicit that by asking questions if
that would be the pleasure of the Board.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: That is fine.

MR. RODEGERDTS: As the suggestion has been made, we

prefer to do each of these in individual
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cross-examinations. Although I understand that Mr. Gilbert
would prefer, but again it is up to the Board's discretion,
would prefer to offer his, the summary of testimony of his
two witnesses and his testimony, which I understand he is
going to just give you a summary of without an exchange,
but he would then prefer to have all three undergo
cross-examination simultaneously with him presenting all
three witnesses first.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: That is very good.

Imperial.

MR. OSIAS: Imperial has no cross-examination for Mr.
Rodegerdts.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: San Diego.

-—--000---
CROSS-EXAMINATION OF CALIFORNIA FARM BUREAU FEDERATION
BY SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY
BY MR. SLATER

MR. SLATER: Good morning.

It is Mr. Rodegerdts?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Rodegerdts.

MR. SLATER: Mr. Rodegerdts, I want to ask you, if I
can, you referred to two studies that were authored by a Don
Villarejo; is that correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: The first study is on the Impact of
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Reduced Water Supplies on the Central Valley Agriculture; is
that correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: Was that study on the impacts of a planned
fallowing program?

MR. RODEGERDTS: No.

MR. SLATER: Isn't it true that that study focused on
the economic impacts associated with reductions in CVP
delivery as a result of the drought?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: It also considered potential reallocation
of water supplies under the CVPIA; is that correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: And you don't disagree with the conclusion
in the Executive Summary which indicates that overall the
reduction amounted to more than 50 percent of the available
supply between the years 1984 and '86 when compared to the
final years of the drought?

MR. RODEGERDTS: No.

MR. SLATER: The second study that you referenced is
entitled Farmers, Workers and Townspeople in an Era of
Water Uncertainty; is that correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes. That would be our Exhibit 2.

MR. SLATER: Thank you, your Exhibit 2.

In turn that study relies to some degree on the prior
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exhibit; is that correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: I'm not sure that I would agree with
that characterization. I think that the conclusions reached
in each are essentially the same, that you curtail
agricultural water supply in any degree and actually result
in the fallowing of land because there is no water available
to keep it in production, that this has a rippling affect
which can become a cascade across the local economy of far
reaching consequences.

MR. SLATER: I suppose I was referring to Footnotes 7,
8, et cetera, in the report. But let me call your attention
to a specific conclusion just to make sure we are on the
same page.

Do you have the Exhibit No. 2 in front of you?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: Midway down, Page 3 of the report, in the
second full paragraph, Line 2.

MR. RODEGERDTS: Second full paragraph?

MR. SLATER: Yes. The report again concludes that
surface water deliveries to the CVP service area were 56
percent lower than the predrought period, correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes, that is what it states.

MR. SLATER: Do you happen to know who the surface
water contractor is in the area of Mendota?

MR. RODEGERDTS: No, I do not know offhand. There may
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be one.

MR. SLATER: If I said Westlands, would that sound
right?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Satisfy me.

MR. SLATER: Are you familiar with the types of water
supply contracts that the Bureau of Reclamation has with its
contractors under the CVP?

MR. RODEGERDTS: To some extent.

MR. SLATER: Are you aware that there is a difference
between an exchange contract and a basic contract with the
Bureau?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: Are you aware that there are shortage
provisions in those contracts?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes. But that is not the issue. The
issue is here however the lack of water comes about there is
water that previously was used to irrigate crops which is
not available. ©Now, you can have provisions and anticipate
this may occur from time to time, but nonetheless the whole
group of people in communities and businesses out there who
may not fully appreciate that and make plans, make business
plans, personal plans on the assumption that agricultural
production will continue. And when you don't have a water
supply, it doesn't. That has impact. That is the only

point that we are trying to make here. That let us put that
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up front, consider it and perhaps address it if it is
appropriate. Make provisions for the fact we will not have
the same degree of agricultural production that we once had
because the water is not available for whatever reason.

MR. SCOTT: Is there a difference -- Strike that.

The report indicates that there is a difference between
communities in the eastern Central Valley portion of Central
Valley and Mendota areas; isn't that correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes. I think that is correct.

MR. SLATER: Do you know whether -- Strike that.

Isn't it true that there are alternative water supplies
that are available in the eastern portion of the Central
Valley, groundwater and other surface water supplies?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Sure oftentimes in an overdrafted
basin, yes.

MR. SLATER: Isn't it true that Kings River system, for
example, 1s available to many irrigators in the Central
Valley?

MR. RODEGERDTS: That may be true, but, again, that is
not the point. That is not why we are offering the two
studies into evidence in this proceeding. It is the result
of agricultural water supply that was once generally
considered to be relatively secure and suddenly disappears.
That is the issue.

MR. SLATER: It is the lack of reliability associated
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with water supply that is the issue, correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: No. The water is there one year and
it is not there the next, and it is likely not to be there
the following year and the following year. It may, in fact,
have been considered reliable. Look back in California.
Ten years ago a whole lot of water supplies are now to be
considered to be very unreliable were considered pretty
reliable, pretty sacrosanct, pretty untouchable.

You know, the days when agriculture reigned supreme and
no one questioned that. Now we're questioning that.

MR. SLATER: So at one time the water supply was deemed
reliable?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SCOTT: It is your testimony now that it is not
reliable, correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Some supplies are not reliable.

MR. SLATER: The supplies that were studied in the
Mendota papers, is that reliable?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Again, that is not the issue. That
shortage largely came about because of drought conditions.
We are just talking -- these reports are being submitted
what happened -- I'm repeating myself now -- what happens
when the water supply disappears?

Here you are talking about reallocating 300,000

acre-feet of water for possibly 75 years. Most likely,
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surely 45 years. That is a pretty significant change in
water availability and pretty permanent.

MR. SLATER: Is the water supply reliable?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Which water supply?

MR. SLATER: The water supply that was provided in the
Mendota study example.

MR. RODEGERDTS: I don't understand the question.

MR. SLATER: You have two papers, correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: Both authored by Don Villarejo, correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: He studied the impacts of reduced water
supply in the Mendota area, correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: It is your testimony that that water
supply was unreliable, correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: And it is your testimony that that water
supply is not now reliable, correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: No, I am not saying that. We are not
talking about the condition now; we are talking about the
condition then. There was a drought, a five- or six-year
drought, and that water wasn't on the landscape, and it
resulted in agricultural production declining

significantly.
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The study measured what that impact is on the folks who

aren't, in fact, producing the crop. And in part those,

too, because there were significant sales of agriculture

land, so forth, the whole Marianne.

MR. SLATER: The study analyzes the impacts of a

reduced water supply, correct?

MR. RODEGERDTS: That is right.

MR. SLATER: A water supply contract which delivers

water 50 percent of the time is not reliable, is it?

MR. RODEGERDTS: I wouldn't consider it reliable.

MR. SLATER: Isn't it true that a water supply that

suffers a 56 percent shortage in the time of the drought is

not reliable?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: Thank you.

No further questions.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: The Tribes.

I don't think anybody is here.

Defenders of Wildlife.

MR. FLETCHER: No questions.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: County of Imperial.

//
//
//

---00o---
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CROSS-EXAMINATION OF CALIFORNIA FARM BUREAU FEDERATION
BY COUNTY OF IMPERIAL
BY MR. ROSSMANN
MR. ROSSMANN: Sir, I just have one question for Mr.
Rodegerdts.

Your written testimony, sir, are you prepared to verify
that is true under penalty of perjury?

MR. RODEGERDTS: Indeed, I am.

MR. ROSSMANN: Thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: Mr. Du Bois.

MR. DU BOIS: No.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: Mr. Gilbert.

MR. GILBERT: No questions.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: You can redirect yourself here.

MR. RODEGERDTS: I weighed that opportunity and at
this time I would like to move into evidence California Farm
Bureau Federation Exhibit 1, 2 and 3.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: There is no objection. They are so
entered.

Thank you very much.

Mr. Du Bois.

—-—-000—---
DIRECT EXAMINATION OF WILLTAM DU BOIS
BY MR. RODEGERDTS

MR. DU BOIS: I will take the stand as my own witness,
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and Henry Rodegerdts will interrogate me.

CHATIRMAN BAGGETT: Interrogate.

MR. RODEGERDTS: Mr. Du Bois,

name for the record?

MR. DU BOIS: My name is William I.

Du Bois, and I am

also representing six other members of my family who are

also landowners.

MR. RODEGERDTS: And your current address?

MR. DU BOIS: 3939 Walnut Avenue,

Carmichael, but at

other times my address is 801 West Ross Road, El Centro.

live in both places.

MR. RODEGERDTS: What is your occupation?

MR. DU BOIS: Well, for purposes of this hearing I am

an Imperial Valley farmland owner.

However,

most other

occasions I represent the California Farm Bureau as a

natural resources consultant.

MR. RODEGERDTS: This -- you are a farmland owner.

Where is that property located?

MR. DU BOIS: My property is in Section 10,

I

would you state your full

Township 16

South, Range 13 East, San Bernardino Basin Meridian; and

that is located for other ways of finding it about a mile

west of El Centro on both sides of Interstate 8.

MR. RODEGERDTS: I won't ask you your age,

but I do

want to ask your farming experience and background, and I

think it goes back a long ways.

CAPITOL REPORTERS
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MR. DU BOIS: Yes. I started farming in 1937 on rente
land. And 1940 I bought my first property, and I have
raised some 15 different crops during the period of time.
also did custom farming other people's ranches, all the way
from soil preparation to harvesting the crops. I was on
the board of directors of several corporations for
harvesting, marketing and processing, both cooperatives and
corporations.

Also, I think, what is kind of important for these
purposes here, I have done a lot of irrigating myself, long
ago.

MR. RODEGERDTS: Out in the field with the boots on?

MR. DU BOIS: Correct.

MR. RODEGERDTS: You have also seen the evolution of a
lot of farm practices and crops in the Imperial Valley, is
that correct?

MR. DU BOIS: Yes. They certainly have changed. I
have been not farming myself for about 30 years. And I
think I'd be a fool to go back and try it again now because
the laws have changed and the practice has been changed.

MR. RODEGERDTS: Do you go down there often to the
Imperial Valley?

MR. DU BOIS: Yes, about twice a month.

MR. RODEGERDTS: About how long do you stay when you

are down there?
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MR. DU BOIS: All the way from a two-hour meeting to
when I have the time I can spend a week there.

MR. RODEGERDTS: You go out and talk to the farmers in
the fields and you are aware of what is going on when you
are down there; is that correct, in the agricultural arena?

MR. DU BOIS: I try to keep aware. The reason I do
that is because I depend on lessees to farm my property, and
farming has not been so profitable in the last few years
that lessees have a habit of, I wouldn't say a habit, but a
fear of going through bankruptcy. They don't make good
tenants after that.

MR. RODEGERDTS: Do you wish to make any changes to
your written testimony?

MR. DU BOIS: Yes, I do. The draft that was -- the
testimony that was sent out to the parties has some blanks
in it, and it was also labeled opening statement. I think
it should be labeled testimony.

That is on my Exhibit 6. It is on Page 5 of the
exhibit, paragraph subtitled Drainage Water Going into
Salton Sea, the exhibit numbers may have been left blank.
The first one says see IID Exhibit B 1600, and it should be
corrected to read State Water Resources Control Board
Exhibit 2.

The next paragraph contains blanks which should read Du

Bois No. 1, Du Bois No. 2 and Du Bois No. 3. 1Incidentally,
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my number one is the same as part of IID Exhibit No. 42. On
Page 7, under the subparagraph labeled Hazards, the pricing
exhibit referred to is IID 7.

On Page 8 under Water Allocation the last line of the
second paragraph should read Exhibit Du Bois No. 4,
Resolution 12-96.

And finally on Page 12, under Financing, the last line
of the first paragraph should read Exhibit Du Bois No. 5.

MR. RODEGERDTS: Thank you.

Are you familiar with California water transfers, in a
general sense?

MR. DU BOIS: Yes. In my work with the California Farm
Bureau in the last 30 years, particularly the last 15 of
those years, there have been a number of transfers that have
been somewhat noteworthy, and I tried to keep abreast of
most of the procedures in those transfers. 1In addition to
my work professionally for the Farm Bureau, being a
landowner myself, I have a natural instinct to want to know
more about this. So I have kept abreast of them for that
reason, too.

MR. RODEGERDTS: Would you consider yourself to be a
opposed to this transfer?

MR. DU BOIS: ©No. I am not opposed to it. I think it
could be beneficial for the whole Imperial County and for

the Irrigation District. However, I am so concerned about a
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good many of the details that if they are not changed, I
think I will be opposed to it.

MR. RODEGERDTS: What changes do you think would be
necessary for this to get your support?

MR. DU BOIS: As indicated in my testimony, I have
identified about ten issues I think that are principal
facts. One is risk. It is a terribly risky situation that
we find ourselves in now, both from the Salton Sea
standpoint and also from the standpoint that we don't have
any knowledge of what the IID farmer/landowner contracts are
going to be like. And I think that is probably one of the
principal risks that cause me to be very cautious about
support.

The second is the pricing structure. I'm probably not
the smartest guy alive and I haven't had the best
mathematical education and I am free to admit that I don't
understand the pricing structure that is cranked into the
contract, and I don't think I would want to sign a contract
that I didn't understand. That is a problem.

The length of time for which we are obligated, I think
75 years, 1s really not reasonable because so many things
can change within a period of a span of a very few
years. I'd be much more comfortable with a contract for 20
or 30 years, but certainly not for anything like 45 years

which is with its provisions that either party can trigger
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the extension I think is very hazardous.

Another problem I have is the way history is used as
the basis from which the District would apparently intend to
calculate water savings or water conservation. Or I prefer
to use the Board water salvage. I think conservation is an
overused and inaccurate term for using less water.

The sequence of investments is another point. The contract
seems to indicate that the first water would come from
130,000 acre-feet of on-farm conservation. And on-farm in
many farms, the IID water delivery is -- I wouldn't say
spasmodic, it's pretty reliable, but it fluctuates up and
down. And the farmer cannot make the same -- cannot take
the same benefit from doing on-farm conservation that he
could if the system were much more reliable in its delivery
characteristics. And so because of that, I think the
system improvements should absolutely be made first before
the on-farm contracts are exploited.

MR. RODEGERDTS: By system improvements you mean those
that the District are going to —--

MR. DU BOIS: The District itself, they have done, I
think, a pretty good job of identifying things that they can
do that, they can't do under the present circumstances
because it wouldn't be an economic move for them. But where
they can sell part of the water that is salvaged through

those means, it does become economic.
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Fallowing is another issue. I think a fallowing --
well, some of my friends down in Imperial when they talk
about fallowing, they say, "When does it end?" If you
fallow for one purpose, what is to keep you from fallowing
for another purpose or from extending the quantity of
fallowing until you wind up with practically no farming
scenario in the county? You begin to lose your farm
equipment dealers and your other service contractors.

Another thing is the volume of water subject to
transfer. I just think that starting out with a contract
that obligates you to salvage 300,000 acre-feet of water is
not a reasonable thing to do all at one move. I think the
District did very well in the first 110,000 acre-feet that
was financed up front by Metropolitan Water District. But
to now add 300,000 acre-feet to that I think is not good
judgment.

As I mentioned before, the -- I did not mention this
before. But I have picked up information incidentally
during the last couple weeks that makes me believe that the
agreement between San Diego and IID probably will be amended
and, of course, this is another source of concern. I
studied the present agreement very carefully a few years
ago, and I would like time to study it at least as carefully
after it is rewritten.

Then my last point is the uncertainty of the division
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of the income. The agreement specifies, I think, some $249
an acre-foot that San Diego would pay to Imperial in the
first 20 years plus inflation factor, but we don't have any
indication from our own District as to how that would be
divided. It seems the community wants a bite of it. I know
the District will have to have a bite of it because they
have administrative costs, and I am uncertain how much the
environmentalists are going to whack out for the lawsuits
that we suffer. So this is another concern to me.

MR. RODEGERDTS: Do you have anything else that you
would like to add by way of summary?

MR. DU BOIS: I could add a great deal. But I think
most of it is related in my testimony and in the interest of
time I think I would stand for cross-examination.

MR. RODEGERDTS: I offer Mr. Du Bois for
cross-examination.

CHATIRMAN BAGGETT: Thank you.

Imperial.

-—--000---
CROSS-EXAMINATION OF MR. DU BOIS
BY IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRICT
BY MR. OSIAS
MR. OSIAS: Good morning, Mr. Du Bois.
MR. DU BOIS: Good morning.

MR. OSIAS: Nice to see you again.
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You have been a landlord of Imperial Valley farmland
for some significant period length of time?

MR. DU BOIS: Approximately 30 years.

MR. OSIAS: Has it been pursuant to a 30-year lease, or
do you have --

MR. DU BOIS: No. I did sign a ten-year lease one
time because the party wanted to plant asparagus, and I
extended that for a couple years because the asparagus
lasted a little longer. But the 12-year lease is the
longest that I have dealt with a lessee.

MR. OSIAS: That was because of the crop that the
lessee wanted to grow?

MR. DU BOIS: That's correct.

MR. OSIAS: So a typical lease is five years? Four
years?

MR. DU BOIS: No, I wouldn't say that. I have leased
for only single crops for a portion of a year. I guess I
would say the commonest term is probably three years for
me.

MR. OSIAS: Thank you.

Could you tell us what sort of typical dollar per acre
rent 1is?

MR. DU BOIS: I can tell you what in my neighborhood it
is. The ground that I own is neither extremely soft nor

hard. It is not ground that is particularly difficult to
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farm. On the other hand, it's got a quite a bit of clay in
it. We lease for in the neighborhood of 150 to $200 an acre
a year.

MR. OSIAS: Thank you.

Now you don't tell your tenant what to grow, do you?

MR. DU BOIS: ©No. But -- not directly. I don't write
it in the lease, but I would like to know what is going to
be grown ahead of time.

MR. OSIAS: So that is something you discuss before you
enter a lease?

MR. DU BOIS: Yes, that is correct.

MR. OSIAS: Would it be fair to say that the crop
selected by the tenant is selected for a variety of
reasons?

MR. DU BOIS: No. I think there is only one reason
that he select a crop and that is he figures he can make
money on it.

MR. OSIAS: The suitability of the soil wouldn't be a
factor?

MR. DU BOIS: Of course. The character of the soil
limits him, absolutely, that is the degree of success. But
my ground is pretty much multipurpose, and I think it will
grow most any crop that is grown in Imperial.

MR. OSIAS: Has it rotated through different crops in

the past?
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MR. DU BOIS: I beg your pardon?

MR. OSIAS: Has your land rotated through different
crops in the past?

MR. DU BOIS: Yes.

MR. OSIAS: Is rotation necessary?

MR. DU BOIS: I wouldn't say it's necessary. I know
there are experimental plots that have been in cotton
constantly for decades, and sometimes they keep improving
the ground. But it is a general practice to, in my
community, to have three or four years in alfalfa and then
to rotate into other crops. It might be grain. It might be
vegetables or oil seed crops, or things like that.

MR. OSIAS: There are no significant properties, for
example, that have stayed in alfalfa for 20 years in a row?

MR. DU BOIS: ©No. But I had alfalfa stay in for six
years in a row.

MR. OSIAS: Then the land was rotated to another crop-?

MR. DU BOIS: Usually, yes.

MR. OSIAS: You mentioned in your written testimony
that you were concerned about risk associated with the
decline in the Salton Sea, correct?

MR. DU BOIS: Yes, I am very concerned about that.

MR. OSIAS: I think you even mentioned that property
owners who sued IID for the Sea going up may now sue them

for the Sea going down; is that right?
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MR. DU BOIS: That is one of the things I see in the
future. I'm paranoid about that.

MR. OSIAS: Would your fear be somewhat alleviated if
there was a law that held that the IID should enter into an
agreement to reduce through conservation measures the volume
of the flow directly or indirectly into the Salton Sea shall
not be held liable for any effects to the Salton Sea or its
bordering area resulting from the conservation measures?
Would that reassure you some?

MR. DU BOIS: Those are comforting words, but that
legislation hasn't stood the test of time. Therefore, it is
of considerable concern to me whether it will turn out to be
constitutional or not.

Working as a lobbyist, I helped in the formation of
some of that legislation, and I've been waiting to find out
how good it is when it gets into court.

MR. OSIAS: When you say it hasn't withstood the test
of time, you are not aware of any case that has held it is
not, correct?

MR. DU BOIS: I beg your pardon?

MR. OSIAS: You know of a judicial decision that says
that that law is not effective?

MR. DU BOIS: That's correct.

MR. OSIAS: You are just worried about it?

MR. DU BOIS: That's correct.
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MR. OSIAS: Has any environmental group approached you
to lease your land?

MR. DU BOIS: ©No. I guess the nearest person that
might be interested in leasing property like that would be a
hunting group. But my property is split by Interstate 8§,
and it is not a good idea to use a rifle or shotgun on
either sides of Interstate 8, so I think they would probably
not want to lease the place, and I don't think I want the
liability of leasing it to them, a group like that. I
really don't believe that it is the highest and best use is
for environmental purposes.

MR. OSIAS: I was actually thinking more in lines of
its water supply. No environmental group has asked to lease
your land in order to fallow it, correct?

MR. DU BOIS: Yes. But I think the Imperial Irrigation
District general policy, although I don't believe it is
written, I think they have a general policy opposing
fallowing. I believe that is why it is in the San
Diego/Imperial agreement, prohibition against fallowing.

MR. OSIAS: That is all I have.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BAGGETT: Thank you.

San Diego.

-—--00o0—-—--

//
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CROSS-EXAMINATION OF MR. DU BOIS
BY SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY
BY MR. SLATER

MR. SLATER: Good morning, Mr. Du Bois.

MR. DU BOIS: Mr. Slater.

MR. SLATER: You live in Imperial County?

MR. DU BOIS: Yes.

MR. SLATER: Do you live within the boundaries of the
Imperial Irrigation District?

MR. DU BOIS: I do.

MR. SLATER: Are you registered to vote?

MR. DU BOIS: I am.

MR. SLATER: Can you explain to me how your tenants go
about ordering water from the Imperial Irrigation District?

MR. DU BOIS: Well, I may not be as up to date as I
should be because I haven't checked with them lately. But I
believe the procedures are somewhat the same. There is a
deadline each day by which water needs to be ordered in
order to receive water the following day. But once in a
long while --

My property is located near the headwaters of a canal,
the Eucalyptus Canal, and because of being near the
headwaters, the water service is more reliable if we are at
the very north ends as some of the later witnesses will

indicate.
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But the District has the right to hold deliveries for,
I think, up to three days in case they are short of water.

MR. SLATER: Is that a scheduling issue as opposed --

MR. DU BOIS: I think it is probably a -- I am sure the
District can answer this more accurately than I can. My
impression is that is because the District did not calculate
on maybe an increase in temperatures that stepped up the
irrigation on people's farms, and so they got more orders
than they would have otherwise. And they just don't have
the water at the time.

MR. SLATER: To the best of your knowledge, the
District has never declared a moratorium on servicing these
connections, has it?

MR. DU BOIS: That is -- maybe I better ask you to
restate that question.

MR. SLATER: Start here. To the best of your
knowledge, has the District ever engaged in an annual
rationing program of any kind?

MR. DU BOIS: Not annual rationing. There was one time
before Hoover Dam was operative that the District ran out of
water, and they then instituted a rationing plan which gave
livestock the first preference, perennial crops the second
preference, and annual crops the last preference of water.
At that time there were -- it was prohibitive to irrigate

landscaping outside the house, and I was just out of high
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school at that time. It was in the early '30s, and so a
couple of friends of mine formed a company and we delivered
water to people in town for the landscaping, primarily
wealthy people like attorneys, doctors, et cetera.

MR. SLATER: That is a great story.

Since the '30s are you aware of any annual rationing
program that has been adopted by Imperial Irrigation
District?

MR. DU BOIS: I would say since Hoover Dam became
operable, it has not been necessary to do that, except just
the temporary situations where they didn't order enough
water or the canal capacity was limited to certain amount of
water, and they had more orders than the capacity.

MR. SLATER: To the best of your knowledge, Imperial
Irrigation District has never held a moratorium and said
there is no more water available within our boundaries?

MR. DU BOIS: Not that I have.

MR. SLATER: To the best of your acknowledge, has the
Secretary of Interior or any federal government or agency
ever told Imperial there wasn't enough water to meet their
demands?

MR. DU BOIS: There you have asked me a question that
is beyond my capacity to know. 